# PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS <u>AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY</u>

] Ordinance [] Pub	lic Hearing
nty Library/Administration	
nty Library/Administration	
	Inty Library/Administration

# I. EXECUTIVE BRIEF

## Motion & Title: Staff recommends motion to:

**A) Approve** submittal of an Application to the Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services, for a Library Services and Technology Act Grant for an estimated amount of \$67,000 and matching funds of \$22,500 to purchase assistive listening technology; and

**B)** Authorize the County Administrator or designee to submit the grant application electronically to the Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services

**Summary:** The Palm Beach County Library System is planning to use the grant funds to purchase for each branch location FM/Wi-Fi assistive listening technology and equipment. Many Palm Beach County Library System locations were outfitted with FM assistive listening systems when buildings were built and/or renovated before 2015. These systems are moving towards end of life. In addition to traditional FM assistive listening systems, Wi-Fi assistive technology allows visitors to use their own mobile devices to access audio performances. An updated assistive listening system will enable the Palm Beach County Library System to better serve the public. Staff time spent working on this project will be used towards the calculation of local matching funds required by the grant. If the grant is awarded, the Library Department will return to the Board of County Commissioners to present an agreement with The Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services laying out all of the terms and conditions. (Countywide) (AH)

**Background and Justification:** According to the Johns Hopkins Medicine, 20% of Americans suffer from hearing loss, which means that in Palm Beach County approximately 300,000 individuals fall into this category. The Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services is the state library administrative agency officially designated to receive and administer federal grant funds from the Institute of Museum and Library Services. The Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) is the major federal grant program for libraries. The LSTA program, administered by the Institute of Museum and Library Services is a state-based program. The program focuses on information access through technology and information empowerment through special services that emphasizes public libraries. It increases emphasis on accountability and evaluation and is authorized under United States Codes. Florida's grant program is based on the purposes of LSTA and the needs of Florida residents and libraries. It is developed from the goals and outcomes provided in Florida's Library Services and Technology Act long-range plan.

Attachment: LSTA Grant Application Guidelines

Recommended By:	(Douglas Crane) 2-19.2020
Department Director	Date
Approved By: 201 J Blue Assistant County Administrator	(Todd Bonlarron) 2/ 21/ 20-20 Date
Assistant County Administrator	

# II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

## A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years	20 <u>20</u>	20 <u>.</u> 21	<b>20</b>	<b>20</b> 83	20 <u>'</u> ay
Capital Expenditures Operating Costs External Revenues Program Income (County) In-Kind Match (County)	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0
NET FISCAL IMPACT # ADDITIONAL FTE	0	<u>0</u>	0		0
POSITIONS (Cumulative)	0	0	0	0	0
Is Item Included in Current Bu	udget?		Yes_	No <u>x</u>	
Budget Account No.:	Fund_	Dept_	Unit_	Object	
Does this item include the use of federal funds? Yes_X_ No					

## B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Sources:

В.

Impact: No fiscal impacts at this time. Should the grant be awarded, a budget amendment will be submitted to the Board for approval.

C. Departmental Fiscal Review:

(Director, Library Finance and Facilities)

# III. REVIEW COMMENTS:

A. OFMB Fiscal and/or Contract Dev. And Control Comments:

2120 2020 12020 Contract Dev. And OFMB Legal Sufficiency:

Anne delyant 2.24.2020

Assistant-County Attorney

C. Other Department Review:

**Department Director** 

This summary is not to be used as a basis for payment.

3N1

# LIBRARY SERVICES & TECHNOLOGY ACT GRANT

# GUIDELINES

LSTA Application

<u>dosgrants.com</u>

Application Deadline: March 16, 2020

Florida Department of State Division of Library and Information Services R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective <del>06-2019</del> <u>xx-xxxx</u>

# **Application Submission**

Applications must be submitted on or before March 16, 2020.

Applications must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com.

# For Assistance and Information

Contact Grants Staff: 850.245.6630 Voice 850.245.6643 Fax 850.922.4085 TDD Email: grantsoffice@dos.myflorida.com

These Guidelines are also available electronically at: <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/grants/lsta/guidelines-applications-and-forms</u> and can be made available in alternative formats.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

# CONTENTS

# **GUIDELINES**

I.	OVERVIEW	1
II.	DEFINITIONS	1
III.		4
IV.	TIMELINE	6
V.	APPLICATION SUBMISSION	7
VI.	APPLICATION	8
VII.	MATCHING FUNDS	13
VIII.	ASSISTANCE FROM THE DIVISION	13
IX.	TYPES OF PROJECTS	13
Х.	FUNDING DECISION PROCESS	16
XI.		18
	EVALUATION CRITERIA	19
XII.	GRANT ADMINISTRATION	21

# LAW AND RULE

Chapter 257, <i>Florida Statutes</i>	27
Rule 1B-2.011, Florida Administrative Code, Library Grant Programs	28

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective <del>06-2019</del> <u>xx-xxxx</u>

# LIBRARY SERVICES & TECHNOLOGY ACT GUIDELINES

# I. OVERVIEW

The Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services is the state library administrative agency officially designated to receive and administer federal grant funds from the Institute of Museum and Library Services.

The Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) is the major federal grant program for libraries. The LSTA program, administered by the Institute of Museum and Library Services:

- Is a state-based program.
- Has purposes which focus on information access through technology and information empowerment through special services.
- Emphasizes public libraries but encourages interlibrary cooperation and partnerships among all types of libraries.
- Increases emphasis on accountability and evaluation.
- Is authorized under 20 United States Code 9101 et seq., as amended (uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter72&edition=prelim) (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference. The general administrative requirements may be found in 45 Code of Federal Regulations Part 1183 (gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1183) (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference.

Florida's grant program is based on the purposes of LSTA and the needs of Florida residents and libraries. It is developed from the goals and outcomes provided in Florida's Library Services and Technology Act long-range plan, (dated June 2017) (dos.myflorida.com/media/698097/lstaplan2018-22.pdf), incorporated by reference. Grant projects must clearly fit in with both the LSTA purposes and priorities as listed in Section IX and Florida's long-range plan. The Division may identify priorities for funding in a specific year.

# **II. DEFINITIONS**

- Audit means the annual audit of the organization for that year, carried out in accordance with requirements of the federal Single Audit Act, 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf) (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference, and Section 215.97, Florida Statutes and generally accepted accounting principles, conducted within nine months of the close of the organization's fiscal year.
- *Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)* is a government-wide compendium of Federal programs, projects, services and activities that provide assistance or benefits to the American public. It contains financial and nonfinancial assistance programs administered by departments and establishments of the Federal government.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

The Library Services and Technology Act Grant Program CFDA number is 45.310.

- **Deliverable** means the quantifiable goods or services that must be provided in order to receive payment. Each deliverable must be connected with one or more activities identified and described in the Scope of Work. Deliverables, along with the Scope of Work, are included in the grant agreement. Deliverables must be agreed upon by the Division and the grant recipient. The deliverables will be developed by the grant applicant in the grant application for inclusion in the grant agreement but may be renegotiated by request of the Division.
- *Department* means the Florida Department of State.
- *Division* means the Division of Library and Information Services of the Florida Department of State.
- Data Universal Number System (DUNS) Number. The DUNS number is a nine-digit number established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet Inc. (D&B) to uniquely identify business entities. It is a tool the federal government uses to track how federal money is distributed and is required for all organizations that receive federal funding. This number should be for your organization's governing body, which is the same organization that the Division signs a grant agreement with. Examples of governing bodies include county commissions, city councils and governing boards. Many organizations already have a DUNS number. If your organization does not have a DUNS number, one may be obtained free of charge from D&B by telephone at 866.705.5711 or online at fedgov.dnb.com/webform.
- *Financial consequences* means the consequences that will be applied if the grant recipient fails to perform all activities outlined in the Scope of Work and/or fails to meet the deliverables outlined in the grant agreement. Per Section 287.058, *Florida Statutes*, the Division is required to specify a reduction in funding that will be applied if the subrecipient fails to perform all activities outlined in the Scope of Work and/or fails to meet the deliverables outlined in the grant agreement. Financial consequences are tied to deliverables and each payment.
- *Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS)* is the State of Florida's centralized online contract reporting system. All information pertaining to the grant agreement will be available on the FACTS system and viewable by the public. This includes the grant agreement, payment information, deliverables, performance metrics, grant award and audit information. FACTS is online at <u>facts.fldfs.com</u>.
- Florida Library Information Network (FLIN) is the statewide cooperative network for interlibrary loan and resource sharing. FLIN was established in 1968 so that all Florida residents could have access to information and materials held in Florida's libraries. Membership includes libraries of all types. FLIN participation, policies, protocols and procedures are described in *The FLIN Manual*. *The FLIN Manual* (dated December 2018), incorporated by reference, and is available free of charge from Director, Division of Library and Information Services, 500 S. Bronough Street, Mail Station #9D, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250 or online at <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/moreprograms/statewide-resource-sharing/flin</u>.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

A list of FLIN member libraries is available from grants staff at grantsoffice@dos.myflorida.com.

- *Grant Agreement* means a written document setting forth the terms and conditions under which a grant is provided to an applicant by the Department, including the rights and responsibilities of each party to the agreement, which is approved and signed by the Department and an authorized representative of the applicant. The LSTA Grant Agreement (form DLIS/LSTA01, effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>), incorporated by reference, will be sent to the library along with the grant award notification. The grant agreement will include a scope of work and project deliverables.
- Indirect Costs are costs incurred by an organization that cannot be readily isolated or identified with just one project or activity. These types of costs are often referred to as "overhead costs." Typical examples of indirect costs include payments for general telephone service, postage, office supplies, office space expenses, and administrative or financial operations for an entire organization. Indirect costs are authorized under 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.414 (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-sec200-414.pdf) (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference. For more information on the indirect cost rate that can be used, see Section XII, Grants Administration.
- *Noncompliance* means the subrecipient is not following *Florida Statutes*, rules, the terms of the grant agreement, Florida Department of State policies and guidance, local policies, or other applicable laws. For the consequences that result from noncompliance, see Section XII, Grant Administration.
- *Performance measures* provide the criteria for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable.
- *Performance metrics* describe the documentation to be used to prove the deliverable has been met.
- *Performance standards* describe the acceptable level of services to be performed or products to be delivered.
- **Project Summary** is a brief overview of the project, including a description of the target audience, the needs to be addressed and how the project will meet those needs. A project summary is not the same as a scope of work.
- Scope of Work is a description of the specific work to be performed under the grant agreement in order to complete the project. It is not the same as the project summary but provides more detail and is typically broken down into specific activities with deadlines. The scope of work will be provided by the applicant in the grant application for inclusion in the grant agreement but may be renegotiated by request of the Division. The Scope of Work must be agreed upon by both the Division and the grant recipient.
- *State Library Council* is a nine-member group appointed by the Secretary of State. The State Library Council duties are to advise and assist the Division with planning, policy and priorities related to the development of statewide information services. The State Library Council serves as the review panel for LSTA applications.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

## **III. ELIGIBILITY**

Florida libraries and nonprofit organizations primarily related to the provision or support of library services are eligible to apply for LSTA funds. Nonprofit organizations must be qualified or registered pursuant to Chapter 617, *Florida Statutes* and be in good standing. Good standing means a nonprofit organization has current certificate of good standing from the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations.

To receive a grant:

- A. The library's services program must be headed and administered by a librarian who has completed a library education program accredited by the American Library Association; and
- B. The library must agree to make their resources available to the public either onsite or by participation in the Florida Library Information Network (FLIN). Circulation of the library's collection to the public is not a requirement of making collections available to the public; however, the public must be allowed to enter the library to use its resources. Participation in FLIN means that the library must have a letter of agreement on file with the Division of Library and Information Services to make the library's resources available via interlibrary loan to other libraries.

For purposes of Florida's grant program, a library is defined as an organized collection of information resources with paid staff and regularly scheduled hours for being open to the public, that is legally established and is supported in whole or in part with public funds, or makes its collections accessible to the public either directly or through the Florida Library Information Network (FLIN).

The following entities are eligible to apply for LSTA funds:

**Public libraries.** Public libraries are all libraries eligible to receive State Aid to Libraries grants and city, county or nonprofit association-funded libraries that provide free library services to their legal service areas. This category also includes state-supported institutions and Native American tribal libraries.

Unless otherwise provided for, the administrative unit of a consolidated or cooperative public library coordinates and applies for grants on behalf of member or branch libraries. Grant agreements will be made with the governing body of the public library cooperative for projects implemented by member libraries. Grant applications may be for the entire library system, an individual branch or member library, or for some other portion of the organization.

The headquarters of a library system or cooperative must submit the application. The project can be for the entire system, an individual branch or for some other portion of the organization, but only the headquarters can submit the application. For example: if the project will benefit one county in a multi-county cooperative, the director of the multi-county cooperative must submit the application on behalf of the county library.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

Correctional institution libraries that are not a part of the Florida Department of Corrections or privately operated correctional facilities must meet the basic eligibility requirements under Sections III - A and B to receive a grant. Applications from correctional institution libraries administered by the Florida Department of Corrections must be coordinated through and administered by the central office of the Department of Corrections. Department of Children and Families libraries must also meet the basic eligibility requirements under Sections III - A and B to receive a grant.

**Public elementary, secondary or charter school libraries.** Unless otherwise provided for, the county school board coordinates and applies for grants on behalf of public elementary, secondary and charter school libraries. Grant agreements will be made with the county school board for projects implemented by libraries in a school district. Grants may be for a single member or multiple members of a school district. To be eligible to receive a grant, the district media coordinator or contact must meet the requirements provided in Section III - A. When the district media coordinator or contact does not meet the eligibility requirements, grant applications may be submitted in partnership with another school district or another type of library that meets all of the eligibility requirements.

*Academic libraries*. Academic libraries include public state universities, state or community colleges and private post-secondary education libraries. The academic support organization for the public colleges and universities is also included in this category. To be eligible to receive a grant, the library must meet the basic eligibility requirements under Sections III - A and B to receive a grant.

*Library consortium*. Eligible library consortia in Florida are the five multitype library cooperatives: Northeast Florida Library Information Network, Panhandle Library Access Network, Southeast Florida Library Information Network, Southwest Florida Library Network and Tampa Bay Library Consortium. To be eligible to receive a grant, the library director must meet the basic eligibility requirements under Section III - A to receive a grant.

*Special libraries*. Special libraries include information resource centers located at publicly supported government agencies, museums, hospitals, associations and other organizations with specialized information needs. At least 50 percent of the agency's operating funds must come from public governmental sources. To be eligible to receive a grant, the library must meet the basic eligibility requirements under sections III - A and B to receive a grant.

**Other organizations serving libraries.** An organization that strengthens and supports libraries, such as state professional library associations, must be a not-for-profit corporation, qualified or registered pursuant to Chapter 617, *Florida Statutes* and in good standing. Unlike the other organizations listed above, the project manager must be a librarian who has completed a library education program accredited by the American Library Association. Projects funded with LSTA funds to these organizations must be open to staff of any Florida library or allied organization and not limited to members of the organization.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

Partnerships or cooperative efforts on projects may occur among all types of libraries. The library that administers the project should submit the application. For example, if the partnership includes an academic library and a public library, and the public library will administer the project, then the application should be submitted by the public library. If the academic library is to administer the project, the application should be submitted by the academic library.

# **IV.TIMELINE**

January 2020	Announcement of application submission period in <i>Florida</i> <i>Administrative Register</i> and via email.
January 2020 – March 16, 2020	Division staff assistance and consultation available to applicants.
March 16, 2020	Applications due. Applications must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u> on or before this date.
March 2020	Grants Office & Division staff review of applications.
April 2020	LSTA Panel preliminary review of applications.
April – June 2020	LSTA Panel Application Review and Funding Decision Meeting. <u>Secretary of State review and approval.</u> Applicants notified whether or not they will receive a grant.
July1, 2020	Projects begin.
January 30, 2021	Mid-Year Reports due for FFY 2020 projects. Mid-Year Reports must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u> on or before this date.
June 1, 2021	Last date to have grant agreement signed in order to be able to receive grant funds.
September 30, 2021	Ending date of FFY 2020 projects. All grant and matching funds must be expended by this date.
November 30, 2021	Final Reports due for FFY FY2020 projects. Final Reports must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u> on or before this date.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective <del>06-2019</del> <u>xx-xxxx</u>

## **V. APPLICATION SUBMISSION**

*Application Submission*. Applications must be submitted electronically on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

If a library <u>or organization</u> is not listed in the DOS Grants System, the library <u>or organization</u> may be added by contacting the Division of Library and Information Services at grantsoffice@dos.myflorida.com or 850.245.6608.

Applications must be submitted by the <u>library or</u> organization director or a person designated by the director with the authority to submit an application.

*Number of Applications*. There is no limit to the number of applications a library <u>or</u> <u>organization</u> may submit. However, libraries <u>or organizations</u> must prioritize all applications submitted. Capability to implement a project and the track record of previously implemented projects will be considered as factors in awarding grants. Each library <u>or organization</u> should assess its ability to implement multiple grants before submitting applications.

*Number of Years of Project Funding*. There is no limit on the number of years that a project may be funded. Applications are evaluated and grants awarded on a single year basis. However, a library's or an organization's track record – including effectiveness of evaluation – will be taken into account for projects requesting multiple years of funding.

*Grant Award Amounts*. Available grant funds will be awarded to projects that are the most competitive and that most appropriately help the state meet the goals and outcomes outlined in Florida's Library Services and Technology Act long-range plan.

For competitive projects, there is no minimum or maximum amount of grant funds that must be awarded. For statewide projects, funding recommendations cannot be reduced more than 5% from the amount requested. For both types of projects, funding cannot be for more than is requested. The amount of grant awards will be determined each year based on the availability of funds and the evaluation of applications according to established program priorities and criteria for evaluation of applications.

7

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

# VI. APPLICATION

The following information should be provided in the application. The application must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

**Applicant Information**. Provide general information related to the applicant and application, including:

- organization information,
- organization director contact information,
- project manager contact information,
- DUNS number,
- Internet Safety Education Program implementation status, and
- Rural Economic Development Initiative eligibility status.

**Project Information.** Provide overall project information, including the application priority, targeted user groups, project service area and project summary.

**Introduction.** Provide an overview of the applicant and establish who is applying for funds. The information provided in questions 1 - 5 should be answered for the applicant listed on the project information section.

If the project is being implemented by an outlet, member or specific subset of the organization, the information in questions 1 - 5 can be provided for the specific subpart as a part of the response to question 6.

- Where is the applicant located geographically?
  Indicate where the applicant is located. For example: indicate county or region of state; county where a municipality is located, etc.
- 2. How many staff members does the applicant have? Include the number of full-time staff, part-time staff and volunteers.
- 3. How many service outlets does the applicant have? Give the number and additional information if necessary.
- How many registered borrowers does the applicant have? The response can be a number or a more detailed explanation if necessary. Multitype library cooperatives <u>and other organizations serving libraries</u> can indicate zero as they do not have actual registered borrowers.
- 5. What is the governance of the applicant? Describe how the applicant is a part of the overall organization. For example, a Department of county or city government, a special tax district, etc.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

6. Provide any additional information about the applicant to set the context for the project. Include influences affecting the organization or community. For example: a large seasonal population influx, special collections, community or economic influences. If there is no information to be provided, indicate "Not Applicable."

**Need.** The need defines the problem to be solved by the project and the targeted population to be served by the project. The need makes a case for funding the project. Provide information for each of the following questions:

- 1. Size of the target population. Provide the number of people that the project is intended to reach.
- 2. Who is the target population? Provide information on the characteristics, statistics, relative comparisons or other demographics of the group of people to be served by the project.
- 3. What are the unmet needs of the target population? Describe why this group of persons is being targeted for service and what their needs are as related to the project. This could include information on education levels, access to resources, the community situation, or factors such as a seasonal population increase, unemployment, etc.
- How are the target population's needs not being met by the library or other community services?
  Provide information on the current conditions which prevent the applicant or other organizations from meeting the target population's needs. This could include information on the collection, staffing, resources, accessibility, etc.
- How does the project relate to the applicant's long range plan or enhance the mission of the organization?
   Indicate the applicable sections of the long range plan of the organization that the project supports. The entire long range plan does not have to be included.
- 6. Additional factors for consideration. If applicable, include any additional information to provide context for the need for the project. If this project has had any previous activity or funding either locally or

the project. If this project has had any previous activity or funding, either locally or from LSTA or other grants, provide a current status of the project and its results to date. If there is no information to be provided, indicate "Not Applicable."

**Partners.** Project partners are outside agencies or organizations who will be working in partnership on the project for the mutual benefit of the applicant and partner. Vendors under contract are not usually considered to be project partners.

List each partner's name and describe their roles in the project. If there are no partners, indicate "Not Applicable."

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

Activities. Identify each major project activity area. For each major project activity area, provide:

- Activity name,
- A detailed narrative and what will be done, including a timeline for the activity,
- A list of resources needed and
- The outputs that will be measured for each activity.

Add as many major project activity areas as are needed to implement the project.

The narrative should describe each activity in measurable terms, such as the number of programs, length of programs, types of training, number of items to be purchased, etc. If purchasing materials for the collection, provide a description of formats, areas, and number of items to be purchased. Include who is responsible for carrying out each activity.

Additional Project Information. Provide information on:

- Plans to promote and publicize the entire project. Indicate who will be responsible for carrying out the publicity activities and how will the target audience be informed about the project,
- Plans to continue or sustain the project once grant funding ends, and
- Information related to digital images, if they are to be produced during the project.

**Evaluation.** Provide information on how the project will be evaluated as it is implemented. This section should also provide the measures to determine the project's success.

- 1. Evaluation Narrative. Describe the evaluation plan for the project including who will be responsible for the evaluation and when the evaluation will occur. Describe any questionnaires, surveys, or test instruments to be used. Describe any reports the evaluation will produce. Describe how the evaluation will be used to make changes within the project year. If you wish to include evaluation samples (not required), they can be uploaded in the attachments section of the application.
- 2. Outcomes. The outcome measures changes in knowledge, skills, behavior or condition of the customer as a result of the project. The Division requires at least one of the three required outcomes be used to evaluate each project. Select at least one of the outcome(s) below that will best measure the success of the project. Additional outcomes can be added if desired, but are not required.

The required outcomes for the grants are:

- The targeted population uses information or services that were not previously available.
- The targeted population uses technology to get information.
- The targeted population demonstrates an increase in their knowledge, skills or abilities.

- 3. Indicator. Indicators show how well the project is meeting an outcome. An indicator answers the question "how do we know that an outcome is achieved?" It is the statistics or data gathered to prove your results. Provide at least one indicator for the outcome. List additional indicators, if needed.
- 4. Source. For each indicator listed, list the who or what that will provide the data that you will use to evaluate the outcomes of the project
- 5. Method. For each source listed, list the method by which the data used to determine the indicator will be collected.

If funded, grant projects that include the activities of: (a) program instruction, (b) content acquisition or creation or (c) planning and evaluation, which benefit the library workforce or the general public, are required to be evaluated using outcome-based assessment questionnaires (surveys). See Section XII, Grant Administration, Grant Evaluation section, page 22, for additional information.

Budget. Provide details on the proposed expenditures of all grant and matching funds.

The budget explains and justifies the LSTA and matching funds required to implement the project. It should be clearly related to project activities. Each section of the budget is comprised of two required parts: the budget detail and budget narrative of the proposed amounts.

For each amount listed in the detail, the narrative should show how the amounts were calculated, for both grant and matching (if applicable) funds, i.e., include calculations, unit costs, or breakdown of costs.

Matching funds must be at least one third of the total grant. Match does not have to be a line item or section match; it is an overall total amount of matching funds.

Local matching funds are local funds used for match excluding any federal grant funds.

Scope of Work and Deliverables. Provide information that will be used in the development of the grant agreement — the scope of work, the deliverables and the performance metrics related to each deliverable.

1. Scope of Work

Provide the wording for the Scope of the Work that will be incorporated into the grant agreement. Write the Scope of Work based on the activities proposed in the application

#### 2. Deliverables

Provide the deliverables that will be delivered prior to each payment, based on planned activities and Scope of Work. Then provide the performance metrics or documentation that will be used to prove each deliverable has been met. The deliverables and performance metrics will be incorporated into the grant agreement.

The Division will utilize the information provided by the applicant in the application when developing the Scope of Work and Deliverables for use in the grant agreements of the approved projects.

Certifications and Attachments. Provide the required certification forms as applicable.

- Debarment Form. All applicants must complete this form to certify that the organization has not been deemed ineligible to receive federal funding. The form (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference, is available at <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-</u><u>libraries/grants/lsta/guidelines-applications-and-forms</u>.
- Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA). The form (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference, is available at <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/grants/lsta/guidelines-applications-and-forms</u>. All applicants must complete this form. The FFATA Act requires that information on federal awards and executive compensation be made available to the public through a single searchable website, www.USASpending.gov.
- 3. Internet Safety Certification Form. The form (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference, applies only to public libraries and is available at <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/grants/lsta/guidelines-applications-and-forms</u>.
- 4. Lobbying Activities Form. Complete this form if your organization lobbies Congress for the passage of any federal act or law, or if your organization pays for a lobbyist to lobby Congress. The form (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference, is available at <u>info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/grants/lsta/guidelines-applications-and-forms</u>.
- 5. <u>Certificate of Good Standing. A current certificate of good standing from the Florida</u> <u>Department of State, Division of Corporations must be provided. This only applies to</u> <u>not-for-profit organizations who do not receive Library Cooperative Grant funding.</u>
- 6. Support Materials. Add any attachments that are applicable to your application (optional).

## **VII. MATCHING FUNDS**

If a project requests less than \$10,000 (\$0-\$9,999) in grant funds, no matching funds are required. All other projects must provide local matching funds that equal a minimum of one-third (1/3) of the amount of federal funds requested or awarded. A library in a county or community with rural status may request a waiver of the match requirements at the time of the grant application in compliance with Section 288.06561, *Florida Statutes*. Statewide projects coordinated by the Division may have the matching requirement waived.

Local matching funds may be in-kind or cash contributions. Expenditure of funds by partners on project-related activities may be used as match. The expenditures must be documented and reported.

Local matching funds may not be used on more than one project.

Matching funds must be related specifically to the project.

Matching fund expenditures may only be made during the project period. Funds expended before or after the project period may not be used as match.

The following may not be used as match for grants:

- Other federal grant funds.
- Volunteer time. Volunteer time may only be used to show support for the project as a part of the Inputs section of the application. It may be shown as number of full-time equivalents or hours spent in support of a project.

# **VIII. ASSISTANCE FROM THE DIVISION**

Grant program and grant-writing workshops and webinars may be offered to provide assistance with developing an LSTA application. Division staff is available to assist with development of grant applications, discuss grant ideas, assist with evaluation design, review draft applications and offer advice throughout the application development period. Drafts may be submitted directly to Division staff for review and feedback. A draft can be sent at any time prior to the application deadline. Drafts should be as complete as possible to allow staff to provide a more thorough and comprehensive review.

# **IX.TYPES OF PROJECTS**

Florida's grant program is based on the purposes of LSTA and the needs of Florida residents and libraries. It is developed from the goals and outcomes provided in Florida's Library Services and Technology Act long-range plan. Projects must clearly fit in with both the purposes and priorities of LSTA and Florida's long-range plan (dos.myflorida.com/media/698097/lstaplan2018-22.pdf) (dated June 2017), incorporated by reference.

LSTA allows funds to be expended for the following types of programs and services (20 USC Chapter 72 Section 9141

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

(<u>uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter72&edition=prelim</u>) (as of <u>April xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference:

- Expanding services for learning and access to information and educational resources in a variety of formats, in all types of libraries, for individuals of all ages in order to support such individuals' needs for education, lifelong learning, workforce development and digital literacy skills.
- Establishing or enhancing electronic or other linkages and improved coordination among and between libraries and entities for the purpose of improving the quality of and access to library and information services.
- Providing training and professional development, including continuing education, to enhance the skills of the current library workforce and leadership and to advance the delivery of library and information services.
- Enhancing efforts to recruit future professionals to the field of library and information services.
- Developing public and private partnerships with other agencies and community-based organizations.
- Targeting library services to individuals of diverse geographic, cultural and socioeconomic backgrounds, to individuals with disabilities, and to individuals with limited functional literacy or information skills.
- Targeting library and information services to persons having difficulty using a library and to underserved urban and rural communities, including children (from birth through age 17) from families with incomes below the poverty line.
- Developing library services that provide all users access to information through local, state, regional, national and international collaborations and networks.
- Carrying out other activities consistent with the purposes of this act set forth in 20 USC Chapter 72 Section 9121

   (uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter72&edition=prelim)
   (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference, which are specified below, removing duplication from Section 9141:
  - Promoting continuous improvement in library services in all types of libraries in order to better serve the people of the United States.
  - Facilitating access to resources in all types of libraries for the purpose of cultivating an educated and informed citizenry.
  - Encouraging resource-sharing among all types of libraries for the purpose of achieving economical and efficient delivery of library services to the public.
  - Promoting literacy, education and lifelong learning and enhancing and expanding the services and resources provided by libraries, including those services and resources relating to workforce development, 21st century skills and digital literacy skills.
  - Ensuring the preservation of knowledge and library collections in all formats and enabling libraries to serve their communities during disasters.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

In designing projects, applicants are encouraged to explore innovative and creative ways to deliver services to their identified population and, when applicable, to establish and nurture partnerships and use technology to meet the needs of users.

The Division may identify priorities for funding in a specific year.

The Division may initiate statewide projects to address special needs and opportunities that implement objectives and activities of the long-range plan. When applicable, eligible grant recipients will be notified of application availability, program information, guidelines and timelines.

When applications are submitted, they will be placed into one of two categories by Division staff for review and funding recommendation:

- Statewide. These applications are for projects that directly support statewide programs or services. There are two types of statewide projects:
  - 1. Regionally administered training programs from the multitype library cooperatives.

For the regionally administered training programs, the maximum amount of funding that can be applied for is \$200,000. Division staff will provide the applicants with a maximum amount of funding for which they can apply for each regionally administered training program.

2. All other projects that directly support statewide programs or services.

Division staff will provide the applicant with a maximum amount of funding for which they can apply for each statewide project.

The Division reserves the right to determine when a statewide project will no longer be funded. If such a determination is made, the Division will provide the notice of discontinuance to the subgrantee that administers the impacted program no later than June 30, 2020. In the next grant cycle, which will become the final year of the project, the subgrantee shall receive the same grant amount it was awarded in the previous year.

If a subgrantee determines that it no longer wishes to continue a statewide project, the Division should be notified no later than the pending application due date for the next grant cycle, so that a determination can be made to move the project to another eligible organization or to end the project with the current funding year.

• Competitive. These applications do not support a statewide program or service.

# X. FUNDING DECISION PROCESS

The application funding decision process is accomplished in three phases:

- 1. Grants Staff Review. Upon receipt by the Division:
  - Grants staff reviews applications for eligibility and completeness. If an application is found to be incomplete, the applicant will be notified of the identified deficiencies and will be given an opportunity to submit information or documentation to render the application complete. If the identified deficiencies are not corrected by the established deadline, the application will be declared ineligible. When applications are declared ineligible, applicants will be notified of their ineligibility.
  - Points for implementation of an Internet safety program are determined for competitive project applications. (See Section XI, Evaluation Criteria.)
- 2. *LSTA Application Review Meeting.* The State Library Council serves as the review panel and makes funding recommendations on all grant applications submitted by eligible organizations. The application review will be held during a public meeting. The Division strongly encourages applicants to participate in the grant panel meeting, however, it is not required. Participation instructions will be emailed to applicants and posted on the Division's website. Participation can be in person or virtually.

The total amount of funding that will be available for the LSTA application awards will be allocated by the Florida Legislature in the General Appropriations Act.

The panel review and funding process will take place in two parts, a Statewide Project Application Review and a Competitive Project Application Review. The review and actions will take place in this order:

#### a. Statewide Project Application Review

Statewide projects will be reviewed but not scored by the Panel.

Individual panel members will review statewide project applications prior to the meeting. Each statewide project application will be reviewed and discussed individually by the Panel during the meeting. During the meeting, prior to discussing an individual project, the applicant will have the opportunity to provide a verbal update of the application. Applicants will also be given an opportunity to answer questions asked by panel members during the discussion of the individual project. The Panel will make recommendations of funding amounts for each application.

- The panel can recommend revisions or changes to applications as a condition for funding.
- The panel cannot recommend more funding than is requested for each project.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

• The panel may choose to reduce up to five percent (5%) from each statewide project.

Once the funding recommendations are finalized for the statewide projects, the funding recommendations for statewide projects will be locked and no further funding adjustments or revisions to the grant will be made by the panel.

Division staff will determine how much funding remains after the statewide project funding recommendations are completed and present this amount to be read aloud at the panel meeting. If residual funds are available, the panel will go to Competitive Project Application Review.

#### b. Competitive Project Application Review

Competitive projects will be reviewed by the Panel in two rounds

#### 1. Scoring Round

Individual panel members will review and score each competitive application prior to the meeting. Initial panel member scores must be entered into the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com no later than one week before the panel meeting.

Each competitive application will be reviewed and discussed individually by the panel during the meeting. During the meeting, prior to discussing an individual project, the applicant will have the opportunity to provide a verbal update of the application. Applicants will also be given an opportunity to answer questions asked by panel members. Panel members will have an opportunity to modify and/or finalize their scores during the meeting. After discussion of each project, each panel member will voice their final score on the application. The official score is the one voiced at the meeting.

Once the finalized scores are received from the panelists, each application score will then be averaged. The averaged scores will not include points for the Internet safety education program.

The average of the individual panelist scores will be rounded to a whole number. If there is a decimal in the average, and the decimal is a 5 or greater, the score will be rounded up in favor of the applicant. For example, 79.5 will be rounded to 80 but 79.2 would remain 79.

Competitive projects that score at or above 60 points will be considered by the panel for funding recommendations. Those applications that receive an average score equal to 59 or lower will not be considered further for funding.

Once the average scoring has been completed, Division staff will add the Internet safety education points, as applicable, to the average score and will provide a list to the panel, ordered by score, for all projects scoring at or above 60 points.

#### 2. Funding Round

The panel will make a recommendation of a funding amount for each application, totaling up to the amount of remaining grant authority allocated by the Florida Legislature in the General Appropriations Act after funding recommendations were finalized for the statewide projects.

- Funding recommendations can be from \$0 up to the full amount of the funding request.
- The panel can recommend revisions or changes to applications as a condition for funding.
- The panel cannot recommend more funding than is requested.
- The panel can determine the final funding recommendation for each project in various ways such as fully funding from the highest scored application until all of the funds are allocated, percentage funding for all applications, or any other method chosen by the panel.
- 3. *Secretary of State Review*. The panel funding recommendations are submitted to the secretary of state for final review and approval. The secretary of state has the final authority to approve, amend or deny funding recommendations and to award grants.

Upon completion of the application review process, applicants are notified whether or not their application was approved for funding. Results of the evaluation of grant applications are available upon request after the review process is complete.

# **XI.APPLICATION EVALUATION**

Applications will be evaluated individually by each panel member on how clear, complete and appropriate the information provided is.

An application can receive evaluation points as outlined below:

	Points
Project Need	30
Project Impact	30
Project Implementation	30
Internet Safety Education (Public Libraries	9
only), assigned by the Division	
Total	99

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

### **EVALUATION CRITERIA**

#### Project Need

Reviewers will evaluate if the application addresses the following components:

- A description of who is applying for funding. If the applicant is part of a larger organization, information should be provided on both the applicant and the larger organization.
- A description of the target population. The description includes information on the characteristics, statistics, relative comparisons or other demographics of the group to be served. It should include information such as education levels, access to resources, community situations such as poverty level, race and unemployment, as applicable to the target population.
- A description of the unmet need of the target population.
- A description of how the need was determined, including how and what input was collected from the target population on the specific need.
- A description of what conditions have prevented the applicant or other organizations from meeting the unmet need.
- A need that builds a case for the project activities.
- Information, statistics and/or anecdotal examples that document facts, support arguments, show interrelationships and demonstrate participation and support for the project. This information should be substantiated.
- Assessment of how the project fits within the applicant's mission and goals.

#### **Project Impact**

Reviewers will evaluate if the application addresses the following components:

- The benefit of the project on the target audience.
- A solution that is appropriate to address the identified need of the targeted population.

#### **Project Implementation**

Reviewers will evaluate if the application addresses the following components:

- A detailed description of the activities to be performed from the beginning to the end of the project.
- A logical and appropriate process of implementation.
- A realistic timeline for project implementation.
- Evidence that the project is feasible and achievable within the project period.
- An adequate and appropriate publicity plan for the project.

# <u>0 to 30 points</u>

#### 0 to 30 points

0 to 30 points

- Whether the resources described for the project are appropriate and sufficient to carry out the project.
- A realistic budget for the project. All grant and matching funds must be related to the project activities being performed.
- A budget that shows how all grant and matching amounts were calculated.

#### **Internet Safety**

#### <u>0 or 9 points</u>

Points for implementation of an Internet safety program are determined and assigned by Division staff at the time of the Grants staff review. These points cannot be changed by panel members.

Either 0 or 9 points will be awarded to each applicant. All of the criteria must be met in order to receive the 9 additional points. These points can only be awarded to public libraries.

A public library shall receive 9 additional points, in accordance with Chapter 257.12 (3) *Florida Statutes*, if:

(1) It has adopted an interactive and age-appropriate Internet safety education program which has been endorsed by a government-sanctioned law enforcement agency or other reputable public safety advocacy organization and is designed for children and adults. The purpose of the Internet safety program is to promote the use of prudent online behavior and broaden awareness of users concerning online predators; and

(2) The annual number of persons who complete the library's program equals one percent or more of the total number of the library's registered borrowers from the preceding year.

The number of persons who complete the Internet safety education program and the number of registered borrowers of each library shall be reported in the library's Annual Statistical Report Form for Florida's Public Libraries. Participants completing the program as a result of strategic partnerships or collaboration between the library and other entities may be included in the annual report. A library that has not submitted an Annual Statistical Report should contact Division staff prior to the application deadline.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

# **XII. GRANT ADMINISTRATION**

Accessible Programs and Services. Grant recipients are required to make their services and programs accessible in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ada.gov), incorporated by reference.

Recipients of LSTA grant funds are also required to comply with Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act (<u>eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm</u>) (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference. Title VII and its implementing regulations provide that no person shall be subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin under any program or activity. This includes English language for persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP), which can provide a barrier to accessing important benefits or services, understanding and exercising important rights, complying with applicable responsibilities or understanding other information provided by federally funded programs and activities. Grant recipients must have appropriate and reasonable language assistance measures designed to address the needs of persons with limited English proficiency as required by Executive Order 13166 (<u>gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2000-08-16/pdf/00-20938.pdf</u>) (dated August 16, 2000), incorporated by reference. For additional guidance on these requirements, see <u>neh.gov/grants/manage/neh-policy-guidance-title-vi-prohibition-against-national-origin-discrimination-it (as of xx 2019)</u>, incorporated by reference.

Acknowledgement of Grant Funding. Both the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) and the Division of Library and Information Services require public acknowledgement of LSTA grant funding for activities and publications supported by grant funds. Any announcements, information, press releases, publications, brochures, videos, web pages, programs, etc. created as part of an LSTA project must include an acknowledgment that LSTA funds were used to create them.

Use the following text:

"This project was funded under the provisions of the Library Services and Technology Act from the Institute of Museum and Library Services. Florida's LSTA program is administered by the Department of State's Division of Library and Information Services."

*Audit*. An audit that is in compliance with requirements of the federal Single Audit Act, 2 *CFR* 2 Subpart F – Audit Requirements (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf) (as of April xx 2019), incorporated by reference, and Section 215.97, *Florida Statutes* must be submitted within nine months following the end of the grant period and close of the organization's fiscal year. If a subgrantee is not required by law to conduct an audit in accordance with the Florida Single Audit Act or the federal Single Audit Act, it must submit a Financial Report on its operations pursuant to Section 218.39, *Florida Statutes* within nine months of the close of its fiscal year.

*Digitization Projects.* Digitization projects supported by grant funding (including matching funds) will be required to:

• Be harvestable by the Sunshine State Digital Network using their required protocol. More information is found at <u>sunshinestatedigitalnetwork</u> (as of <u>April xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

- Have all rights and permissions as required under current law to create and make available to the public the content of the items that are planned to be digitized. The Division reserves the right to request rights and permissions and documentation.
- Follow the Technical Guidelines for Digitizing Cultural Heritage materials (dated September 2016) (<u>digitizationguidelines.gov/guidelines/FADGI%20Federal%20%20Agencies%20Digi</u> <u>tal%20Guidelines%20Initiative-2016%20Final\_rev1.pdf</u>) (dated September 2016), incorporated by reference.
- Include copyright information at the item level using the rights statements found at <u>rightsstatements.org/en/documentation/#use-by-cultural-heritage-institutions</u> (as of <u>April xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference.

*Equipment Purchased With Grant Funding.* Before the grant recipient can purchase any equipment with a purchase price of more than \$5,000 (per item), the Division must request approval from the Institute of Museum and Library Services. The grant recipient will be notified once the approval has been obtained.

*Grant Agreement.* A grant agreement must be signed by both the grant recipient's governing body and the Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services before any grant payments can be requested. The Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/LSTA01, effective 06-2019), incorporated by reference, will be sent to the library after the grant award notification. The grant agreement will include a scope of work and project deliverables. The scope of work and project deliverables will have been agreed upon by the grant recipient and the Division before the agreement is sent to the library. The grant agreement must be signed by all parties by June 1, 2021.

*Grant Evaluation* Grant projects that include the activities of: (a) program instruction, (b) content acquisition or creation or (c) planning and evaluation, which benefit the library workforce or the general public, must be evaluated using outcome-based assessment questionnaires (surveys). Recipients will be required to provide documentation indicating incorporation of these questions into their evaluation process in the project deliverables and then report the results in the Final Report.

		Beneficiary	
		Library Workforce	General Public
Activity    Instruction      Content    Planning and Evaluatio      Procurement    Procurement	Instruction	Yes If A Program	Yes If A Program
	Content	Yes If Acquisition or Creation	No
	Planning and Evaluation	Yes	No
	Procurement	No	No

When to Survey Library Services and Technology Act Project Participants:

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

Outcomes Questions that must be used by Activity and Beneficiary:

Instruction (Program) - Library Workforce

- I learned something by participating in this library activity.
- I feel more confident about what I just learned.
- I intend to apply what I just learned.
- Applying what I learned will help improve library services to the public.

Instruction (Program) – General Public

- I learned something by participating in this library activity.
- I feel more confident about what I just learned.
- I intend to apply what I just learned.
- I am more aware of resources and services provided by the library.
- I am more likely to use other library resources and services.

Content (Acquisition or Creation) - Library Workforce

- I am satisfied that the resource is meeting library needs.
- Applying the resource will help improve library services to the public.

Planning & Evaluation – Library Workforce

• I believe the planning and evaluation addresses library needs.

• I am satisfied with the extent to which the plan or evaluation addresses library needs.

• I believe the information from the plan or evaluation will be applied to address library needs.

Procurement

• N/A

Response options: Strongly Agree, Agree, Neither Agree nor Disagree, Disagree, Strongly Disagree (or Non-response)

These are the core areas that need to be covered. However, recipients are free to ask any additional questions that they feel will help measure the program's success.

*Grant Payments.* Grant awards will be paid in five payments. Payments will be made upon satisfactory completion of the deliverables specified in the grant agreement:

- Payment one will be 25% of the grant amount. The subgrantee can request payment upon satisfactory completion of deliverables.
- Payment two will be 25% of the grant amount. The subgrantee can request payment upon satisfactory completion of deliverables.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

- Payment three will be 25% of the grant amount. The subgrantee can request payment upon satisfactory completion of deliverables.
- Payment four will be 20% of the grant amount. The subgrantee can request payment upon satisfactory completion of deliverables.
- Payment five will be 5% of the grant amount. The subgrantee can request payment upon satisfactory completion of deliverables.

Payment Requests and supporting documentation must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

*Interest earnings.* If any interest is earned on grant funds, the total amount of interest earned during the project must be reported as a part of the final report and returned to the Department of State. Make payments payable to the Department of State and mail to: Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services, 500 South Bronough Street, Mail Station #9D, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250.

*Noncompliance.* If the grant recipient is in noncompliance with any term(s) of the grant agreement or any other grant agreement with the Division of Library and Information Services, the Division of Historical Resources or the Division of Cultural Affairs, the Division may withhold grant payments until the organization and/or governing body comes into compliance. Violation of a grant program requirement, including but not limited to failure to submit grant reports and other grant documents, submission of incomplete grant reports or other grant documents or violation of other contractual requirements shall constitute a basis for the Division to place the recipient and/or its governing body in noncompliance status with the Department of State.

*Notification of Grant Award.* The Notification of Grant Award is used to advise applicants of the amount of their grant award for the applicable fiscal year. On the notification, the project to be funded is listed along with the award amount, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number, and any special project-related comments or instructions. This form should be maintained as a part of the official project files.

If a project is funded, the applicant must submit a Change Request on the DOS Grants System that addresses any conditions or requirement listed in the Notification of Grant Award, if applicable, prior to signing a grant agreement with the Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services.

*Project Period.* The project period shall begin on July 1, 2020 and end on September 30, 2021. The Grantee shall obligate or expend grant or matching funds during the project period. All project and matching funds must be paid out by the project ending date, September 30, 2021. No costs incurred after the ending date of the project period shall be allowed unless specifically authorized by the Division.

**Record Retention.** Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other records, including electronic storage media pertinent to the project, shall be retained through June 30, 2029. If any litigation or audit is initiated or claim made, the records shall be retained until June 30, 2029 or five fiscal years after the litigation, audit or claim has been completed and all issues arising from it have been resolved, whichever is later.

#### LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

*Refunds.* Any unexpended grant funds or interest earnings must be returned to the Department of State. Make payments payable to the Department of State and mail to: Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services, 500 South Bronough Street, Mail Station #9D, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250.

#### Reports

*Mid-Year Report.* A mid-year report for project accomplishments, expenditures and use of evaluative data is due January 30, 2021. This report must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

**Change Request.** Prior to the start of the project, or at any time during the grant cycle, the Division or the organization may request to make changes to the project. Changes can be made to the outcomes, scope of work, equipment to be purchased, key personnel, expenditures or deliverables. Request for permission to revise the project is done by submitting a Change Request in the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

Changes within a budget category that accumulate to less than ten percent (10%) of the award may be made without submitting a Change Request. Changes within a budget category that are more than ten percent (10%) of the award require a Change Request. Moving funds from one budget category to another requires submission of a Change Request. Request.

Approval must be obtained from the Division before the changes are implemented. Approval will be granted for changes that are consistent with the intent of the approved project. Project revisions must be submitted using the Change Request in the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>. Change Requests may necessitate an amendment to the grant agreement.

*Final Report.* A final report for the project is due November 1, 2021. This report provides accomplishments, an evaluation of the impact of the project and a financial accounting of expenditures. This report must be submitted using the DOS Grants System at <u>dosgrants.com</u>.

*Training of Staff.* LSTA funded training provided for staff of libraries or allied organizations must be open to staff of any Florida library or allied organization.

*Use of Grant Funds.* Federal grants, such as the LSTA grants, have limitations on what items and services may be purchased using grant funds. Some items and services are "allowable costs," meaning that they may be purchased using grant funds, while others are not. Examples of some of the more common uses of grant funds and whether they are allowable or not may be found at the Division's website at info.florida.gov/services-for-libraries/grants/lsta.

Expenditures shall be in compliance with the state and federal guidelines for allowable project costs. State guidelines for allowable costs are outlined in the Department of Financial Services' *Reference Guide for State Expenditures* (dated February 2011), incorporated by reference, which is available online at

myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/Auditing/Reference\_Guide\_For\_State\_Expenditure

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(d), *Florida Administrative Code*, Effective 06-2019 <u>xx-xxxx</u>

<u>s (as of xx 2019).</u> Federal guidelines for allowable costs can be found at <u>gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf</u> in 2 *CFR*, Part 200, Subpart E – Cost Principles (as of April <u>xx</u> 2019), incorporated by reference.

#### In general:

Grant funds are designed for direct support of services and programs for the target audience.

Grant funds may be used for evaluation related costs.

Grant funds may be used to assist in making technology and information resources available for persons with disabilities.

If grant or matching funds are used for travel expenses, they must be paid in accordance to the provisions of Section 112.061, *Florida Statutes*.

Grant funds may be used for indirect costs. There are four options for indirect costs in the LSTA application:

- 1. Use a current indirect cost rate already negotiated with a federal agency (2 *CFR* 2 §200.414(e));
- 2. Use an indirect cost rate proposed to a federal agency but not yet approved (2 *CFR* 2 §200.414(e));
- 3. Use a rate not to exceed 10% of the total direct costs if your organization has never had a federally negotiated indirect cost rate and you are not subject to other requirements (e.g., for local governments) ( $2 \ CFR \ 2 \ 200.414(f)$ ); or
- 4. Do not include any indirect costs.

When determining the amount that can be charged to indirect costs, the modified total direct costs amount (MTDC) must be used as the amount of funds that the indirect costs are calculated against. The MTDC is the direct costs of the project minus certain exclusions that include equipment and space rental costs. A list of exclusions that cannot be a part of the MTDC are in 2 *CFR* §200.68.

Grant funds may not be used for:

- 1. Construction. Funds may not be used to build, remodel or expand library facilities. However, they may be used to retrofit a building to accommodate technologies (e.g., wiring).
- 2. Audits. If the grant recipient's governing entity has received less than \$750,000 in federal funds, LSTA funds may not be used to cover audit costs.
- 3. Food. Although food may be served at a program paid for with grant funds, the food may not be purchased with grant funds.

#### **CHAPTER 257, Florida Statutes**

#### PUBLIC LIBRARIES AND STATE ARCHIVES

# 257.12 Division of Library and Information Services authorized to accept and expend federal funds. –

(1) The Division of Library and Information Services of the Department of State is designated as the state library administrative agency authorized to accept, receive, administer, and expend any moneys, materials, or any other aid granted, appropriated, or made available by the United States or any of its agencies for the purpose of giving aid to libraries and providing educational library service in the state.

(2) The division is authorized to file any accounts required by federal law or regulation with reference to receiving and administering all such moneys, materials, and other aid for said purposes; provided, however, that the acceptance of such moneys, materials, and other aid shall not deprive the state from complete control and supervision of its library.

(3) All public libraries are encouraged to adopt an Internet safety education program, including the implementation of a computer-based educational program, which has been endorsed by a government-sanctioned law enforcement agency or other reputable public safety advocacy organization and is designed for children and adults. The purpose of the Internet safety education program is to promote the use of prudent online deportment and broaden awareness of online predators. The program must be interactive and age-appropriate. Each library shall annually report to the division the annual number of program participants who complete the Internet safety education program. By April 1, 2010, the division shall adopt rules for rewarding those libraries in the program grant application process which have had 1 percent or more of their annual number of program participants, based on the total number of registered borrowers from the preceding year, complete the Internet safety education program adopted by the library. Program participants completing the program as a result of strategic partnerships or collaboration between the library and other entities shall be integrated into the library's annual report. The division shall adopt rules to allocate 10 percent of the total points available in the library services and technology grant application evaluation process to public libraries that are in compliance with this section, beginning with the grant application cycle for the 2011-2012 fiscal year.

History.-ss. 1, 2, ch. 26976, 1951; s. 4, ch. 63-39; ss. 10, 35, ch. 69-106; s. 21, ch. 69-353; s. 18, ch. 86-163; s. 4, ch. 2005-207, s. 1, ch. 2009-194.

**257.14 Division of Library and Information Services; rules.** – The Division of Library and Information Services has authority to adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement the provisions of this chapter.

History.-s. 2, ch. 61-402; s. 4, ch. 63-39; ss. 10, 35, ch. 69-106; s. 21, ch. 69-353; s. 3, ch. 83-24; s. 19, ch. 86-163; s. 46, ch. 98-200.

**257.15 Division of Library and Information Services; standards.** – The Division of Library and Information Services shall establish reasonable and pertinent operating standards under which libraries will be eligible to receive state moneys.

History.-s. 3, ch. 61-402; s. 4, ch. 63-39; ss. 10, 35, ch. 69-106; s. 21, ch. 69-353; s. 2, ch. 72-353; s. 3, ch. 83-24; s. 20, ch. 86-163.

LSTA Guidelines Chapter 1B-2.011(2)(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx

#### Florida Administrative Code

#### **<u>1B-2.011</u>** Library Grant Programs.

(1) This rule provides procedures for library grant programs administered by the Division of Library and Information Services (Division). Each program shall be governed by guidelines which contain information on eligibility requirements, application review procedures, evaluation and funding criteria, grant administration procedures, if applicable, and application forms. All grant awards shall be subject to final approval by the Secretary of State.

(2) Applicants for grants shall meet the eligibility and application requirements as set forth in the following guidelines for each grant program:

(a) State Aid to Libraries Grant Guidelines, http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective 06-2019xx-xxxx, which contain guidelines and instructions; Certification of Credentials – Single Library Administrative Head (Form DLIS/SA01), effective 04-2018; Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/SA02), effective 06-2019xx-xxxx; Annual Statistical Form for Florida's Public Libraries (Form DLIS/SA03), 06-2019 http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective 06-2019; Certification of Hours, Free Library Service and Access to Materials (Form DLIS/SA04),

http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective 06-2019.

(b) Public Library Construction Grant Guidelines, http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref<u>-xxxx</u>, effective 06-2019, which contains guidelines and instructions; and Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/PLC01), http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective 06-2019<u>xx-xxxx</u>.

(c) Library Cooperative Grant Guidelines, http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective 06-2019, which contains guidelines and instructions; Annual Statistical Report Form for Multitype Library Cooperatives (Form DLIS/LCG01), effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>; Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/LCG02), http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>; and the Florida Library Information Network Manual http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>; and the Florida Library Information Network Manual http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>; and the Florida Library Information Network Manual http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>; and the Florida Library Information Network Manual http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-<u>xxxxx</u>, effective <del>06-2019</del>.

(d) The Library Services and Technology Act Grant Guidelines,

http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective <del>06-2019xx-xxxx</del>, which contains guidelines and instructions and Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/LSTA01), http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective 06-2010w.

http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-xxxxx, effective 06-2019xx-xxxx.

(e) The Community Libraries in Caring Program Application,

<u>http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01122</u>, effective 4-10-12; which contains instructions and application (Form DLIS/CLIC01), effective 11-16-04; Annual Report (Form DLIS/CLIC02), effective 11-16-04; and Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/CLIC03), <u>http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01123</u>, effective 4-10-12.

(3) Guidelines and forms in this rule are incorporated by reference and may be obtained from the Director of the Division, Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services, R.A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250.

(4) The Division of Library and Information Services will waive the financial matching requirements on grants for rural communities that have been designated in accordance with Sections 288.0656 and 288.06561, F.S. Eligible communities applying for Library Services and Technology Act grants and Library Construction grants must request waiver of matching requirements at the time of grant application.

Rulemaking Authority 257.14, 257.191, 257.192, 257.24, 257.41(2) FS. Law Implemented 257.12, 257.15, 257.16, 257.17, 257.171, 257.172, 257.18, 257.191, 257.192, 257.195, 257.21, 257.22, 257.23, 257.24, 257.25, 257.40, 257.41, 257.42 FS. History–New 1-25-93, Amended 7-17-96, 4-1-98, 2-14-99, 4-4-00, 12-18-00, 11-20-01, 3-20-02, 1-9-03, 12-28-03, 11-16-04, 2-21-06, 2-21-07, 1-24-08, 4-1-10, 4-21-10, 4-10-12, 12-25-13, 7-8-14, 4-7-15, 7-12-16, 07-6-2017, 04-30-2018, 11-19-18, 07-01-19, <u>xx-xxxx</u>. LSTA Guidelines

Chapter 1B-2.011(2)(d), Florida Administrative Code, Effective 06-2019 xx-xxxx